
Indian River County Purchasing Division 
purchasing@indianriver.gov 

ADDENDUM NO. 3 

Issue Date:  June 25, 2024 

Project Name: Gifford Elevated Storage Tank Modification and Rehabilitation

ITB Number: 2024047 

ITB Opening Date: July 3, 2024 (Updated)

This addendum is being released to answer questions received to date. 

The information and documents contained in this addendum are hereby incorporated in the invitation to 
bid. This addendum must be acknowledged where indicated on the Bid form, or the bid may be 
declared non-responsive.

Questions & Answers 

1. The documents state that we are to have a FL Contractor License. Would we be allowed to bid 
this project using our Alabama General Contractor License and our Florida Certificate of 
Authority. 

 The County requires that the bidder possess a State of Florida Contractor License.  

2. Could you please clarify if sandblasting and coatings will need to be provided for both the 
interior and exterior of the tank, or only the exterior? 

 Both the interior and exterior of the tank should be sand blasted and coated. The existing logo 
should be reapplied to the exterior once complete. 

3. What year was the tank built? Is it know to contain lead? 

 The date of the tank’s construction is not known. The attached paint chip results provided by 
Indian River County indicate lead levels well below the CDC limits (i.e. special considerations 
for lead not required) 

4. Will we have access to power and water at the site while performing the project? 

 Although there is power onsite, we do not know what the load requirements of the contractor 
will be and if it can be accommodated. The contractor/bidder should include providing their 
own power in their bid. 

5. If requested, can we work Saturdays and Sundays? 
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 Request to work weekends will be considered based on circumstances. If there is a difference 
in bid cost due to a shorter timeline to work on weekend, the contractor/bidder should show 
that as an alternate. 

6. Does the tank have any antennas? Will the owner have all the antennas and cabling removed 
from the tank prior to the start of the Phase 2 work? 

 Yes, the tank has antennas. Indian River County is actively coordinating with the carriers to 
determine a timeline for temporary relocation during sand blasting. 

7. Is the only the exterior of the tank being sandblasted and painted? If a logo a part of the scope of 
work for this project? 

 Both the interior and exterior of the tank should be sand blasted and coated. The existing logo 
should be reapplied to the exterior once complete. 

8. Is there an estimate or budget for this project? 

 See attached engineers opinion of probable construction cost.   

9. Is this project a wage rate project? 

 Prevailing Wage Determination does not apply to this project.  

10. How soon after the bid do you anticipate the project will be awarded? How soon after award will 
the owner want the contractor on site to begin work? 

 Typically the time from receipt of bids, review, selection, approval contract execution to NTP is 
approximately 60 days. 

11. Who will be inspecting this project? Any 3rd party inspectors? If so, who will it be? If unknown, 
who is being considered? 

 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. is the engineer of record on this project and will be 
coordinating with the selected contractor during the construction. 

12. Please confirm seed and straw of site is acceptable for site restoration. 

 Site should be restored back to similar condition as at the beginning of the project. This can be 
agreed during selection/contract approval stages. 

13. Is containment required on the Phase 2 work and if so, what class is required? 

 Yes, containment is required for public safety (site is next to a school). Blast in accordance with 
SSPC SP-6. 

14. Reference Bid Form #7. What kind of ballast material is being installed in the tank? 

 Acceptable materials include, but are not limited to, gravel, sand, or equivalent aggregate that 
satisfies the necessary total weight. Water or other liquid fill is not permitted. 

15. Reference Bid Form #10. If the tank painting is awarded, how much contract time will be added? 

 2 Months for both sand blasting and coating. Additional time may be awarded at the 
discretion of IRC depending on potential observations discovered during sand blasting. 
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16. Bid Item #7 – Install Ballast Material into Tank Shell - Is the contractor to pay for water (Ballast 
Material) to fill the elevated water storage tank after rehab? 

 The tank is currently empty. The proposed ballast material per question #14 is intended to be 
a permanent modification as this structure will no longer be used to store water. 

Attachments 
Engineers Opinion of Probable Cost 
Paint Chip Testing Results 



KHA Project No: 044572077 5/7/2024

BID ITEM ITEM OF WORK QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST SUBTOTAL

0.1 Mob/Demob. (8%) 1 LS 33,000.00$       33,000.00$              

0.2 Bonds and Insurance (5%) 1 LS 21,000.00$       21,000.00$              

1 Contractor Pre-Modification Inspection 1 LS 5,000.00$         5,000.00$                

2 Replace Sway Rod and Associated Hardware 1 LS 55,000.00$       55,000.00$              

3 Replace Horizontal Strut and Associated Hardware 1 LS 41,000.00$       41,000.00$              

4 Replace Hub Rods and Associated Hardware 1 LS 38,000.00$       38,000.00$              

5 Replace Sway Rod Pin 1 LS 10,000.00$       10,000.00$              

6 Replace Horizontal Strut Termination Bolts 1 LS 17,000.00$       17,000.00$              

7 Install Ballast Material Into Tank Shell 1 LS 50,000.00$       50,000.00$              

8.1 Retighten Safety Climb and Install Wire Clips 1 LS 6,000.00$         6,000.00$                

8.2 Replace Tank Shell Ladder System 1 LS 16,000.00$       16,000.00$              

9 Contractor Post-Modification Inspection 1 LS 5,000.00$         5,000.00$                

BID ITEM ITEM OF WORK QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST SUBTOTAL

10 Sand-Blast and Re-Coat Entire Tank Structure 1 LS 169,000.00$     169,000.00$            

SUBTOTAL (Phase 1): 297,000.00$     

SUBTOTAL (Phase 2): 169,000.00$     
Contingency/Allowance (20%) 93,200.00$              

TOTAL: 559,200.00$     

Notes:
1. The Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or over the Contractor's methods of determining prices or over competitive 

bidding or market conditions. Opinions of probable costs provided herein are based on the information known to Engineer at this time and represent only the 

Engineer's judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. The Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or 

actual construction costs will not vary from its opinions of probable costs.

2. Bid Items numbers correspond to "Modification Schedule" items on sheet S-1 of the associated Structural Remediation Drawings

Indian River County Utilities

Gifford Water Tank - Rehabilitation Upgrades

100% Deliverable

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

TOTALS

K:\RAL_Wireless\Indian River County\Gifford WT\04 - KHRAL-19879 (Remediation Project)\04.3 - KHRAL-19883 (Bid Phase)\Reports\OPCC\2024.03.01 - Gifford Water Tank - Rehabilitation - OPCC.xlsx
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